FILED SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

APR 20 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

CHARLES ANDREW WALSINGHAM, :

. . . .

By Chief Deputy Clerk

Petitioner,

:

Case No. 79,399

STATE OF FLORIDA,

vs.

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

INITIAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER ON THE MERITS

JAMES MARION MOORMAN PUBLIC DEFENDER TENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

ROBERT D. ROSEN
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
FLORIDA BAR NUMBER 0826065

Public Defender's Office Polk County Courthouse P. O. Box 9000--Drawer PD Bartow, FL 33830 (813) 534-4200

ATTORNEYS FOR PETITIONER

TOPICAL

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

May 25, 1989, the Petitioner, CHARLES ANDREW WALSINGHAM, was found quilty of arson, a first degree felony (R7-The trial court found the Petitioner to be a habitual offender and sentenced him to 25 years in prison followed by 20 years probation (R10-11). The recommended guidelines sentence was 7-9 years in prison (R12). An appeal was filed and an opinion rendered by the Second District Court of Appeal on March 6, 1991 (R42-45). In Walsingham v. State, 576 So.2d 365 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991), the court affirmed the Petitioner's conviction but held the sentence was illegal. Under section 775.084(4)(a)1, Florida Statutes (1989), a first-degree felony offender "shall" be sentenced for life. Id. at 576. If a trial court decides not to impose a life sentence, it impose a sentence within the recommended or permitted must quidelines, unless a valid written reason for departure exists. The Second District Court stated "as we cannot determine Id. whether the trial court intended to sentence the defendant as a habitual offender or attempted to use habitual offender status as a reason for departure from the guidelines, we must remand for reconsideration of the sentence."

A new sentencing hearing was held on April 17, 1991, before Circuit Judge E. Randolph Bentley (R46-67). The trial court stated it preferred the sentence it originally imposed because a substantial sentence with restitution and probation was appropriate but under the Second District's ruling, it was forced to choose between life and the guidelines (R49, 62). The trial court chose

to sentence the Petitioner to life as a habitual offender (R63, 66, 68-69). The Petitioner filed a timely notice of appeal on May 7, 1991 (R70).

On December 27, 1991, the Second District Court of Appeal affirmed the Petitioner's life sentence in Walsingham v. State, 17 F.L.W. D139 (Fla. 2d DCA December 27, 1991). The court did certify the same question as in Walsingham v. State, 576 So.2d 365 (Fla. 2d DCA 1991), and further certified its decision was in conflict with Henry v. State, 581 So.2d 928 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991).

On April 7, 1992, this Court handed down an order postponing its decision on jurisdiction and ordering the Petitioner to file a merit brief.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Second District's opinion is incorrect that section 775.084(4)(a)(1) mandates a life sentence.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

THE INSTANT DECISION IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH THE OPINION OF THIS COURT IN <u>BURDICK V. STATE</u>, 17 F.L.W. S88 (Fla. February 6, 1992).

The Petitioner was convicted of the first-degree felony of arson and found to be a habitual offender. The trial court sentenced the Petitioner to 25 years in prison followed by 20 years probation. The Second District reversed the decision, holding the sentence was illegal because a first-degree felony offender "shall" be sentenced for life under section 775.084(4)(a)1, Florida Statutes (1989). Forced to choose between a life sentence or a guidelines sentence, the trial court chose to sentence the Petitioner to life as a habitual offender. The trial judge stated his preference for his original sentence. Under <u>Burdick v. State</u>, 17 F.L.W. S88 (Fla. February 6, 1992), the trial court's original sentence was appropriate.

In <u>Burdick</u>, this Court held that sentencing under section 775.084(4)(a)1 is permissive, not mandatory. <u>Id</u>. at S89. A court can sentence a defendant anywhere <u>up</u> to the maximum sanction. Therefore, the trial court's original sentence in the present case was legal.

CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing reasons, arguments, and authorities, the Petitioner respectfully asks this Honorable Court to reverse the instant decision and reinstate the trial court's original judgment and sentence.