IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MAY 15 1992
CLERK, SUPREME COURT.
By
Chief Deputy Clerk

CHARLES ANDREW WALSINGHAM,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 79,399

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

DISCRETIONARY REVIEW OF DECISION OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL OF FLORIDA SECOND DISTRICT

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

MICHELE TAYLOR

Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0616648 Westwood Center, 7th Floor 2002 North Lois Avenue Tampa, Florida 33607 (813) 873-4739

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Although this Court has recently held in <u>Burdick v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 267 (Fla. 1992) that habitual offender sentencing under section 775.084, Florida Statutes is permissive rather than mandatory, the life sentence imposed by the trial court upon Petitioner's resentencing was appropriate and lawful under the facts of this case, and should be allowed to stand.

ARGUMENT

WHETHER THE INSTANT DECISION IS IN CONFLICT WITH THE OPINION OF THIS COURT IN <u>BURDICK v. STATE</u>, 594 So.2d 267 (FLA. 1992)?

Respondent acknowledges this Court's recent decision in <u>Burdick v. State</u>, 594 So.2d 267 (Fla. 1992), which holds that habitual offender sentencing under sections 775.084(4)(a)(1) and 775.084(4)(b)(1), Florida Statutes is permissive rather than mandatory. However, Respondent respectfully submits that this Court should decline to exercise its discretion to review this case since the life sentence imposed by the circuit court is subject to affirmance on grounds other than those at issue in Burdick and related cases.

The life sentence imposed by the trial court at resentencing is both lawful and appropriate in light of the egregiousness of the crime, Petitioner's prior criminal conduct, and the future threat to the safety and well-being of the victim and her children.

Petitioner was convicted of arson of a dwelling in violation of section 806.01(1), Florida Statutes, a felony of the first degree. (R 1-2). The arson victim, Linda Carter, testified at the resentencing hearing that she feared for own and her children's lives if Petitioner is released:

- Q. Would you state your full name?
- A. Linda Gail Carter.
- Q. And back on November 5th, 1988, did a fire occur?
- A. Yes, it did.

- Q. And were you the victim in that fire?
- A. Yes, I was, my children and myself.
- Q. Did you testify in this trial?
- A. Yes, I did.
- Q. Did the defendant make any threats to you prior to the fire?
- A. I tried to get in at the hearing and I wan't allowed to. The judge cleared the courtroom. He threatened my like, Mr. Langford's life, and my landord's life that night.
- Q. Was it a threat to kill?
- A. Yeah. He pulled up in my car and ordered me to get in it, and I told him no. And he said he was going to kill me. I said just do it here, not taking me off to kill me, do it here. And King was standing right there and so was Mr. Langford.
- Q. What were--would your feelings be if the Court should impose a guideline sentence that might result in the defendant being released in the future?
- A. I'm scared to death that he might get out. That's why I'm here.
- Q. Do you feel he would be a danger to yourself and your children?
- A. Yes, I'm sure of that.

(R 57-58).

Robert Maffet, an employee of the Lakeland Fire Department, described the danger the firefighters faced:

Q. And could you tell the Court whether that fire was a risk to your life and the lives of the fellow firefighters with you?

- A. I believe it was. In fact, it was unusually difficult to put out. It was tried to put out from an exterior attack and then finally we had to go inside, and it took several times of applying the water to the fire in different places before it went out.
- Q. Was that an extremely hot fire in your experience?
- A. Yes, sir.
- Q. Was there danger of flashover at the time you went in?
- A. Well, not only danger of flashover but it had vented through the roof, had damaged the structural integrity of the roof. We had it collapse in a couple of places while we were inside.
- Q. And on other occasions have you seen roofs collapse under similar circumstances?
- A. Yes, sir, when there's been an accelerate used.

(R 55-56).

The trial judge stated at resentencing that he was not comfortable in making a finding that the interest of society do not require the maximum sentence. (R 63). The court certainly felt that the offense committed in this case deserved a severe punishment, stating ". . . I think the crime of arson and particularly arson as we have in this case under all the facts and cirumstances deserves an extremely severe punishment both destruction of property, the potential for destroying other nearby property, the endangering of the lives of the firemen that fight the fire, and all the reasons that has always made arson of

a residence a horrendous crime that's been dealt with severely by the court." (R 62). In concluding that Petitioner should be sentenced as an habitual offender rather than under the a guidelines, the trial court declared, "I think society is better off with Mr. Walsingham out of circulation for an extremely long period of time . . . " (R 63). Respondent submits the life term imposed upon resentencing was necessary for the protection of society, and appropriate under the circumstances of Petitioner's Although the terms of incarceration set out in section 775.084 are permissive, great deference should be given to the sentences established by legislative mandate. In this case, as set out in section 775.084(4)(a)1, the Legislature determined that a life sentence is appropriate for a habitual felon who commits a first degree felony. Therefore, the sentence should remain in effect.

CONCLUSION

WHEREFORE, based on the above reasons and authorities, the State asks this Honorable Court to decline to review this case or, alternatively, to approve the decision of the Second District Court of Appeal.